
From:
To:
Subject: Fw: Draft_Minutes-Mobile_Harbor_GRR_IPR_28_November_17.docx
Date: Friday, December 1, 2017 9:02:55 AM
Attachments: Draft_Minutes-Mobile_Harbor_GRR_IPR_28_November_17.docx

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
  Original Message
From:
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2017 3:04 PM
To:

Subject: Draft_Minutes-Mobile_Harbor_GRR_IPR_28_November_17.docx

All: Before I forward to the larger district team, please review the attached DRAFT minutes from IPR#3 and let me
know if you have any comments by COB tomorrow.
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Pages 2 through 11 redacted for the following reasons:
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
(b)(5)



From:
To:
Subject: Econ Slide.pptx
Date: Monday, December 4, 2017 2:17:00 PM
Attachments: Econ Slide.pptx
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From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: FW: I"m forwarding this from the ACCP mailbox FW: [EXTERNAL] Dauphin Island
Date: Monday, December 4, 2017 9:55:00 AM
Attachments: DI Letter Dec 2017.pdf

: Thank you.

: Please file this accordingly. I have placed it in my file was well.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Monday, December 04, 2017 9:17 AM
To:

Cc: 
Subject: I'm forwarding this from the ACCP mailbox FW: [EXTERNAL] Dauphin Island

From: 
Sent: Sunday, December 03, 2017 10:20 PM
To: Mobile Harbor GRR <MobileHarborGRR@usace.army.mil>; ACCP <ACCP@usace.army.mil>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Dauphin Island
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District Engineer 

US Army Corps of Engineers 

ATTN: PD-F  PO Box 2288 

Mobile AL, 36628 

Sent via email: MobileHarborGRR@usace.army.mil, accp@usace.army.mil 

Dear District Engineer, 

I am writing again regarding the ongoing erosion crisis facing Dauphin Island, AL. We have owned a 
home there for sixteen years. 

Dauphin Island is an important protector and barrier for Alabama’s western coastal shoreline. Over the 
sixteen years we have lived there we have lost over 100 feet of beach due to erosion. This erosion is due 
to Corps’ of Engineers maintenance dredging of the Mobile Harbor Outer Bar Chanel. 

We understand that this channel maintenance must take place. What we and concerned members of 
the Dauphin Island community think is that there needs deposition of dredged sand so it replenishes the 
beaches of the island. Further, there needs to be a dialogue with those directly affected by dredging. 

Further erosion of the island has dire consequences for the island, the biodiversity, and the Alabama 
shoreline. 

Please consider the requests, previously submitted, to change dredging and sand disposal practices. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 
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1

MOBILE HARBOR GRR
PRELIMINARY NET BENEFITS AND BCR 

Highlighted yellow alternatives were modeled in HarborSym.  Other net Benefits estimated using widening 
benefits modeled at 50 foot depth.

450’

500’
45’
50’

500’

48’
45' 47' 48' 49' 50' 51'

Deepening Only NA $17.1M $26.8M $36.5M $44.5M 49.7M
50' widening for 4 miles
50' widening for 5 miles (2,100)$     (41,000)$     (74,300)$      
50' widening for 5 miles (parameter change)* $114,000 $75,000 $42,000
100' widening for 3 miles 265,000$ 148,000$  89,000$     16,000$      (77,000)$      
100' widening for 4 miles
100' widening for 5 miles $700 (169,900)$ (257,000)$ (387,600)$   (481,600)$    

Mobile Harbor Alternatives Matrix
Net Benefits



From:
To:

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Widener Selection
Date: Monday, December 4, 2017 4:20:00 PM
Attachments: Econ Slide.pptx

3308_001.pdf

All: The attached slide includes the narrowed alternatives per today’s discussion. Also attached is the ship
simulation report.

-----Original Appointment-----
From:
Sent: Monday, December 04, 2017 11:25 AM
To:

Cc: 
Subject: Mobile Harbor GRR Widener Selection
When: Monday, December 04, 2017 2:30 PM-3:00 PM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada).
Where: MsCIP Conference Room

All: Please plan on attending a brief discussion on the widener selection for the Mobile Harbor GRR today at
1430hrs in the MsCIP Conference Room. Will provide an updated economics table prior to the meeting.
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1

MOBILE HARBOR GRR
PRELIMINARY NET BENEFITS

*Assumes additional benefits for larger vessels to pass that draft at 45’ or less

450’

500’

45’ 50’
500’

49’

45' 47' 48' 49' 50' 51'
Alternative 1 - Deepening Only NA $17.1M $26.8M $36.5M $44.5M 49.7M
Alternative 2* - 50' widening for 5 miles
Alternative 3 - 100' widening for 3 miles 265,000$ 148,000$  89,000$     16,000$      (77,000)$      

Mobile Harbor Alternatives Matrix
Net Benefits

Note: Highlighted yellow alternatives were modeled in HarborSym.  Other net Benefits estimated using 
widening benefits modeled at 50 foot depth.

Alternative 2 Alternative 3























































































































































































From:
To:
Subject: FW: Mobile Harbor GRR Widener Selection
Date: Tuesday, December 5, 2017 7:23:00 AM

Call me when you get a moment. Have question about cost for Mobile Harbor.

-----Original Message-----
From
Sent: Monday, December 04, 2017 4:20 PM
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
To
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
Subject: RE: Contract Language
Date: Tuesday, December 5, 2017 1:36:00 PM

Looks perfect!

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 1:01 PM
To: 
Subject: Contract Language

How do you think this sounds?

This task order will be supporting efforts required for the Mobile Harbor GRR and Mobile Harbor and Pascagoula
Harbors O&M to meet environmental compliance for open water placement of dredged material from these
projects.  The Corps is obligated under the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act of 1972 (MPRSA) to
demonstrate that the disposal or beneficial placement of dredged material satisfies the open water disposal criteria
and that such actions would not result in any significant adverse effects on human health or welfare, including
municipal or private water supplies, recreation and commercial fishing, plankton, fish, shellfish, and wildlife. 
Results from the proposed sediment testing is also necessary to obtain project state water quality certifications
required under Section 401 of the Clean Water Act.  In addition, any sediment placed within State and Federal
waters must be in compliance with applicable Toxic Effluent Standards under Section 307 of the Clean Water Act. 
The sediment testing to be completed under this task order will conduct rigorous chemical analyses to test for the
presence various contaminants to show that the material dredged from these projects are in compliance with the laws
cited above and falls under the intent of the contract to provide environmental support to military, civil, and Federal
Agencies.
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From:
To:
Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Widener Selection
Date: Tuesday, December 5, 2017 7:21:00 AM

Call me when you have a moment. I would like to have preliminary discussion with today.

-----Original Message-----
From
Sent: Monday, December 04, 2017 7:52 PM
To:
Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Widener Selection

- still needs work.  Let’s talk tomorrow before your meeting with the port.  Thanks.

________________________________

From: 
Date: December 4, 2017 at 4:22:18 PM CST
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
Subject: FW: W9127818F0026-P00001 CONTRACT NO. W91278-16-D-0072 Mobile Harbor GRR and Integrated SEIS,

Mobile, AL
Date: Wednesday, December 6, 2017 7:06:00 AM
Attachments: W9127818F0026-P00001 _MOD.pdf

Please call me when you have a moment.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 11:39 AM
To:
Cc:

Subject: W9127818F0026-P00001 CONTRACT NO. W91278-16-D-0072 Mobile Harbor GRR and Integrated
SEIS, Mobile, AL

Copy of mod exercising Option 1 is attached FYI.
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W31XNJ72990681

AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect.

15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)

30-105-04EXCEPTION TO SF 30
APPROVED BY OIRM 11-84

STANDARD FORM 30 (Rev. 10-83)
Prescribed by GSA
FAR (48 CFR) 53.243

TASK ORDER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING AND DESIGN SERVICES AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT SUPPORT
FOR THE MOBILE HARBOR GRR AND INTEGRATED SEIS MOBILE HARBOR, ALABAMA IS MODIFIED TO EXERCISE
BID OPTION 1:  

IN CONSIDERATION OF A MODIFICATION AGREED TO HEREIN AS COMPLETE EQUITABLE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE ABOVE CHANGES, THE
 CONTRACTOR HEREBY RELEASES THE GOVERNMENT FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY UNDER THIS MODIFICATION FOR  FURTHER 
 EQUITABLE ADJUSTMENTS ATTRIBUTAL TO SUCH FACTORS OR CIRCUMSTANCES GIVING RISE TO THE PROPOSAL FOR ADJUSTMENT.

1. CONTRACT ID CODE PAGE OF  PAGES

J 1 3

16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)

16C. DATE SIGNED

BY 05-Dec-2017

16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA15C. DATE SIGNED15B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR

(Signature of Contracting Officer)(Signature of person authorized to sign)

8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR  (No., Street, County, State and Zip Code)

9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11)

X W9127818F0026
10B. DATED  (SEE ITEM 13)

X

9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.

03-Nov-2017
11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offer  is extended, is not extended.

Offer must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended by one of the following methods: 
(a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning copies of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer submitted;
or (c) By separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE 
RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN  
REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by telegram or letter, 
provided each telegram or letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If required)
See Schedule

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS.
IT  MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.

A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO:  (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE
 CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying 
office, appropriation date, etc.) SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(B).

C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

X D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authority)
52.217-7  OPTION FOR INCREASED QUANTITY--SEPARATELY PRICED LINE ITEM

E. IMPORTANT:   Contractor X is not,   is required to sign this document and return copies to the issuing office.

14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION  (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter
 where feasible.)

10A. MOD. OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.

P00001
2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO. 5. PROJECT NO.(If applicable)

6. ISSUED BY

3. EFFECTIVE DATE

05-Dec-2017
CODE

ENDIST MOBILE CONTRACTING DIVISION
109 ST JOSEPH ST
MOBILE AL 36602

W91278 7. ADMINISTERED BY  (If other than item 6)

4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO.

CODE

See Item 6

AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.
BILL CLENDENIN
300 S GRAND AVE STE 1100
LOS ANGELES CA 90071-3173

FACILITY CODE4L767CODE

Kyle.M.Rodgers@usace.army.milEMAIL:251-690-3356TEL:

KYLE M RODGERS / CONTRACTING OFFICER

 Modification Control Number: k5ctcrch18286



W91278-16-D-0072
W9127818F0026P00001

Page 2 of 3

SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

SECTION DD 1155 - PURCHASE ORDER/DELIVERY ORDERS 
        
SUMMARY OF CHANGES 

SECTION DD 1155 - PURCHASE ORDER/DELIVERY ORDERS 
        
                The total cost of this contract was increased by $253,192.83 from $152,345.25 to $405,538.08. 

        CLIN 0003 
                The option status has changed from Option to Option Exercised. 

The following Delivery Schedule item for CLIN 0003 has been changed from:

         DELIVERY DATE QUANTITY SHIP TO ADDRESS DODAAC / 
CAGE 

POP 03-NOV-2017 TO
03-MAR-2018 

N/A ENGINEERING DIVISION
LORETTA TANNER
P O BOX 2288
109 ST. JOSEPH STREET
MOBILE AL 36628
251-690-2692
FOB:  Destination 

W31XNJ 

To:

         DELIVERY DATE QUANTITY SHIP TO ADDRESS DODAAC / 
CAGE 

POP 05-DEC-2017 TO
31-DEC-2019 

N/A ENGINEERING DIVISION
LORETTA TANNER
P O BOX 2288
109 ST. JOSEPH STREET
MOBILE AL 36628
251-690-2692
FOB:  Destination 

W31XNJ 

Accounting and Appropriation 

Summary for the Payment Office 
         
        As a result of this modification, the total funded amount for this document was increased by $253,192.83 from 
$152,345.25 to $405,538.08. 
        
CLIN 0003: 
         
        AC: 096 NA  X    2018      3121 000 0000 CCS: 116 K5 2018 08 2446 076126 96015 3200 5F3119 (CIN 
W31XNJ729906810003) was increased by $253,192.83 from $0.00 to $253,192.83 



W91278-16-D-0072
W9127818F0026P00001

Page 3 of 3

        The contract ACRN AC has been added. 
        The CIN W31XNJ729906810003 has been added. 

(End of Summary of Changes) 



From:
To:
Subject: Need Updates...
Date: Wednesday, December 6, 2017 7:04:00 AM
Attachments: Econ Slide.xlsx

: Can you guys fill in the yellow highlighted boxes in the attached table today?
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45' 47' 48' 49' 50'
Alternative 1 - Deepening Only $27.90 $190.70 $267.70 $343.30 $425.80
Alternative 2 - 100' widening for 3 miles
Alternative 3 - 100' widening for 5 miles $34.10 $204.90 $285.20 $364.70 $450.50

45' 47' 48' 49' 50'
Alternative 1 - Deepening Only NA $17.1M $26.8M $36.5M $44.5M
Alternative 2 - 100' widening for 3 miles $265,000 $148,000 $89,000 $16,000
Alternative 3 - 100' widening for 5 miles

Net Benefits

Mobile Harbor GRR Preliminary Project Cost Estimate ($M)
Depth

Mobile Harbor GRR Alternatives Matrix

(b)(5)

(b)(5)

(b)(5)



51' 52'
$553.10 $711.60

$581.30 $741.50

51' 52'

(b)(5)
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From:
To:

Subject: December 08 Focus Group Meeting
Date: Wednesday, December 6, 2017 3:56:00 PM
Attachments: focus group 08 Dec 017 DRAFT.PPTX

All,
Attached is a DRAFT of the proposed slides for Friday's Focus Group meeting. I just made minor edits to the
previous focus group slides. Please let me know if you have any comments.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Monday, December 04, 2017 10:37 AM
To

Cc:

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: December 8 is our date

I think we can keep with the same format.  Background:

Bon Secour Fisheries is a processor and wholesale distributor that has deep history – operational
since 1896.  They also fish commercially for shrimp.  They purchase oysters from state-certified producers and then
process.  Their distribution is fish, oysters, shrimp, and crab and specialty items.   Also in attendance may be

Aquila Seafood) – mostly royal red shrimp, but also sells other seafood – not sure this family is
related to t Bon Secour, but perhaps can expand.  There may also be in attendance
(Billy's Seafood).  His family has a retail and wholesale seafood company  - both fish and shellfish.
may also be there ( Carson & Company Seafood) both fishes and sells to the institutional food market.  The both fish
and process shrimp, including farm raised.

is checking to see if we are going to get cultivated oyster interest at this meeting. 
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From: 
Sent: Monday, December 04, 2017 8:56 AM
To:
Cc:

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: December 8 is our date

I plan to visit the meeting location today and provide feedback on any special instructions. Lunch before the meeting
sounds great. will need to give you guidance on presentation.
Looking forward to seeing you all on Friday.
Have a wonderful day!

Sent from my iPhone

> On Dec 4, 2017, at 8:50 AM,
wrote:

>
> ,
> We're assuming we'll do a basic slide presentation like last time. Let me know if you guys are thinking anything
different. Also, do you guys want to meet for lunch over in the Bon Secour area before the meeting?
>
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
>
>
>
>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: 

> Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2017 8:29 PM
> To:
> Cc:

> Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: December 8 is our date
>
> All,
>
> Yes , Fishermen 's Baptist Church at 2:00.  I plan to check out the meeting room while working in Bon Secour
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next week and will forward any special instructions on to all.  Tomorrow I will ask the community leaders to begin
reaching out to your target audience with the meeting arrangements.
>
> Looking forward to seeing you all there.
>
>
>
> Sent from my iPhone
>
> On Nov 30, 2017, at 5:44 PM, wrote:
>
>
>
>   , the Corps’ project manager, is in copy.  The preference is Friday, December 8th at 2:00
pm.  You indicated in an earlier email that you have a room at the Fishermen’s Baptist Church, located at 17101
River Rd, Bon Secour, AL 36511, reserved.  Please confirm this is the location.  I unfortunately cannot make this
meeting, but can attend from our shop.  You will recall meeting him at the Lighthouse meeting.
>
>    
>
>   :  Let’s get it scheduled.  Sorry I cannot be there, but I am obligated elsewhere.  Judy
>
>    
>
>    
>
>    
>
>    
>
>    
>
>    
>
>    From: 

>    Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2017 10:59 AM
>    To: 
>    Subject: December 8 is our date
>
>    
>
>   
>    I will firm up the time once I discuss with group to determine the best time for our target audience to gather. 
The window I am looking at is between the hours of 2 and 6. Please advise if COE has a preference.
>   
>    I turned the server issue over to the IT guys, (aspa) and (adph).
>    Have a great day!
>   
>    
>   
>    Sent from my iPhone
>
>    Confidentiality Notice - This e-Mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) and may contain confidential or privileged information. If this message concerns a lawsuit, it may be
considered a privileged communication. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If
you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original

(b)(6)

(b)(6) (b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6) (b)(6)



message.
>
>    
>
>
>
>
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



Pages 5 through 13 redacted for the following reasons:
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
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From:
To:

Subject: Mobile Harbor GRR Eastern Shore Seafood Focus Group 08 Dec 017 - final minutes
Date: Monday, December 11, 2017 9:42:00 AM
Attachments: focus group 08 Dec 017 DRAFT.pptx

IMG_20171211_093609.jpg

All: Attached are the slides presented and sign-in sheet for last week's Eastern Shore Seafood Focus Group Meeting
held at the Fisherman Baptist Church. Draft minutes are as follows (please let me know if you have comments or
additional notes):
1.) presented the information provided in the attached slides.
2.) Comment: There is an oyster reef to the east of the channel near Gaillard Island that is in the vicinity of the
formerly shell mined area proposed for disposal. Oyster bottoms provide good habitat for Sheepshead. Will we
impact that area? Response: We will be using hydrodynamic and sediment transport modeling to determine the
movement of sediment placed in the shell mined area. Material will be placed in "thin" 1-2' lifts.  Furthermore,  we
do not plan to place material on oyster-bottoms. The shell mined area proposed for placement is a dead zone with a
very "fluidized" mud bottom.
3.) Comment: How deep is the formerly shell mined area and is it still used by the shrimpers? Response: It is about
10-12' in depth. It is not shrimped to our knowledge, but we will need to follow-up on that.
4.) Comment: All oyster reefs on the eastern side of the bay are essentially gone.
5.) asked if anyone has ideas of other ways to beneficially use the material to please let us know.
6.) asked that those in attendance please spread the word that we will have a follow-on public meeting
February 20 and to please encourage others to attend.
7.) Corps provided handouts of the ways to contact us and wrapped up meeting.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Friday, December 08, 2017 8:43 AM
To: 
Subject: focus group 08 Dec 017 DRAFT.pptx
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This image cannot currently be displayed.

MOBILE HARBOR PROJECT

Project authorized in the Water Resources Development Act of 
1986 in accordance with the 1981 Chief's Report.
Full-Service Seaport -- 10th Largest in the United States  -
Balanced Trade (Strong Export Market)

58M tons handled port-wide.  ASPA terminals represent 
25 - 29M tons annually

Port of Mobile has sustained growth in steel, petroleum and 
containerized cargoes

Record 2016 19% growth in containerized cargo – automotive, 
aviation, forest products, chemicals, poultry 
Now ranked No. 2 steel port in the United States
10 New Ocean Carriers Added Service into Mobile in 2016-2017

The Port of Mobile Drives the Regional Economy
Alabama State Port Authority terminals alone generate 124,328 jobs 
and $19.4B in total economic value
Private Petroleum / Petroleum Products terminals alone generate 
5,220 jobs and $687M in economic value

Modernizing Mobile Harbor is Necessary Because
2/3’s of the Port of Mobile’s vessel traffic is restricted or delayed.
Larger Ships Now Transit North American Trade Lanes
Channel Deficiencies and Vessel Transit Inefficiencies Directly 
Impact Shipper Costs and Competitiveness
Mobile’s Port-side Infrastructure Investments have met Shipper 
Needs ($500+ Million Invested) - Channel Investment Necessary to 
Leverage Non-federal Sponsor investment and Regional Growth

INTERMODAL CONTAINER FACILITY MCDUFFIE COAL TERMINAL
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MOBILE HARBOR PROJECT

• The Mobile Bay Watershed is the 6th largest river basin in the United States with five rivers 
forming the 2nd largest delta in the US, and the 4th largest watershed based on drainage 
area (Mobile, Tensaw, Blakeley, Spanish, and Apalachee).  Environmentally and economically important 
because of the exceptional biological diversity and productivity which provides habitat for various 
invertebrates, fishes, waterfowl, migrant birds, as well as, other game and non-game species. 

• Mobile Delta is one of the most diverse ecosystems in the US with 3 types of wetland habitats, 
extensive seagrasses, 200+ species of fish, major shellfish communities, and 300+ species of birds and 
reptiles. The Delta is one of the most important and valuable natural resources in the US.

• Alabama Seafood Industry Economic Impact. Commercial species harvests provide a valuable 
source of revenue for the state contributing approximately $461M in revenue annually and 10,000 jobs. 
The most common commercial species obtained from Alabama waters are shrimp, blue crabs, oysters, 
and numerous species of fish.

• Coastal tourism and recreation provide local 
economic benefits including boating, fishing, swimming,
and sight seeing.  Saltwater species provide the vast majority
of fish caught recreationally in the Mobile Bay system.

• Cultural Resources. The Mobile area is rich in both pre-
historic and historic cultural resources.   
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MOBILE HARBOR PROJECT
ALTERNATIVES

Initial

3

Proposed for 
Impact 
Assessment

Deepening:  47 to 55 feet
Including Turning Basin

Bend Easing

Widener: 100 and 150 feet
5, 10,15 miles in length

Deepening:  50 feet
Including Turning Basin
Bend Easing
Widener: 100 feet
5 miles in length



This image cannot currently be displayed.

MOBILE HARBOR PROJECT



This image cannot currently be displayed.

MOBILE HARBOR PROJECT

Concepts behind Mobile 
Harbor Economic Analysis: 

•With and without the project, 
the same volume of cargo is 
assumed to move through 
Mobile.

•Growth is assumed only to the 
capacity of the facilities

•Deeper channels allow 
shippers to load more 
efficiently

•Channel widening reduces 
delay/waiting time to gain 
efficiencies

•The project benefits are 
reduction in transportation 
costs for goods 
(imports/exports) shipped 
through the Mobile Harbor with 
deepening/widening

Evolution of container ships
Post-Panamax ships make up 16 percent of the world’s 
container fleet today, but carry 45 percent of the cargo.  
New Panamax ships will be the largest that can pass 
through the new locks in 2016.

ECONOMIC CONSIDERATIONS
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MOBILE HARBOR PROJECT

FISHERIES ASSESSMENT

Understand relationships between salinity and fish populations to predict 
potential impacts. Conducted spring/summer fish sampling. 

OYSTER MODELING
Map existing oyster reefs and determine larvae distribution patterns 
throughout the Bay.  Evaluate potential impacts to oysters based on the 
predictive water quality and hydrodynamic models. 

SUBMERGED AQUATIC-VEGETATION (SAV) ASSESSMENT AND
MAPPING

Identify and map distribution of existing sea grasses to establish 
baseline used in determining potential impacts based on water quality 
model results.

WETLAND ASSESSMENT AND MAPPING

Identify and map the distribution of existing wetland communities to 
understand potential impacts based on water quality model results

BENTHIC COMMUNITY ASSESSMENT

Establish baseline conditions to analyze impacts to benthos from water-
quality and saltwater intrusion based on information obtained through 
water-quality modeling

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS
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MOBILE HARBOR PROJECT

CLASSIFY SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS

Compile and evaluate all existing subsurface data for the navigation 
channel sediments. Collect additional subsurface samples/borings to  
determine sediment composition and potential contamination.

SHIP WAKE ANALYSIS

Estimate increases in waves and associated effects due to future ship 
traffic. 

SEDIMENT TRANSPORT MODELING

Collect baseline data and develop hydrodynamic and sediment 
transport models to characterize the physical conditions and sediment 
transport processes of the study area.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE ISSUES

Evaluate the impacts to human and social environments. This will also 
include impacts from air quality and noise pollution. 

CULTURAL RESOURCES

Evaluate potential impacts to Historic Properties in compliance with the 
National Historic Preservation Act.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS
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MOBILE HARBOR PROJECT

PROJECT SCHEDULE (48 MONTHS)

Scoping Alternative Formulation and 
Analysis Feasibility-Level Analysis Report 

Approvalis pppppppppppppppppppprov

Alternatives 
Milestone 
Feb 2016

Tentatively 
Selected Plan 

(TSP) 
Milestone
Mar 2018

Agency Decision 
Milestone
Nov 2018

Division 
Engineer 

Transmittal 
Letter

Mar 2019

GRR 
Approval Nov 

2019

Public 
Scoping 

Jan 2016

andddddddd

Draft SEIS 
Jul 2018

R

Final SEIS 
Aug 2019

Record of 
Decision 
(ROD)

Dec 2019NEPA

GRR

Public 
Meeting
Feb 2018
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Your input will assure that all concerns have been 
considered during the study. Submit your comments in 
any of the following ways:

Email: MobileHarborGRR@usace.army.mil

Postal Mail: 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

ATTN: PD-F

P.O. Box 2288

Mobile, AL  36628 

Stay Informed

Biweekly updates and project 
documents on the project website : 
www.sam.usace.army.mil/Missio

Sign up for the Listserve on the 
project website to receive a copy of 
the quarterly bulletin.

Follow us on…

Facebook.com/USACEMobile

Twitter.com/USACEMobile

Instagram.com/USACEMobile

Sig
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Submit Your Comments
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From:
To:

Cc:
Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579
Date: Monday, December 11, 2017 9:53:00 AM
Attachments: 16-R-0032 - List of Subs.docx

: Based on the attached listing, EA Engineering is not an approved sub for the Civil Works contract. Use of the
REAT to contract with EA is the preferred path by Planning, and as Larry points out in his e-mail below, EA is a
joint venture. 

Please let us know if this requires further discussion.

-----Original Message-----
From: 
Sent: Wednesday, December 06, 2017 7:44 AM
To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

Cardno will not be working on the project.  EA is a separate entity under the Joint Venture and is not a sub to
Cardno.  Under this contract there will be no mark-up on EA, which will be an overall cost savings to us.

_____________________________________

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2017 4:18 PM
To: 
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Cc:

Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

I do have one remaining concern, before signing the DD2579 and moving forward with the package.

It's troublesome for me when the DD2579 and email traffic say we want EA Engineering, Science, and Technology,
Inc., PBC for the work, but the contract is with Cardno-EA JV. Is Cardno going to be involved with this at all? Is
EA Engineering, Science, and Technology, Inc., PBC a sub under Cardno-EA, and if so, couldn't one of the Civil
Works AE holders subcontract with them as well?

It seems to me that we are bypassing the more appropriate Civil Works AE IDIQs so that we can get to a specific
person.

Thanks,

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 3:00 PM
To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

Sounds good.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 2:59 PM
To:

Cc: 

Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

Thanks ,

       is going to be the COR.  I already have the signed waiver memo.

_____________________________________
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-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2017 2:57 PM
To: 

Cc:

Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

I have no problem with using Pool B for this work.

Who is going to be the COR for this contract?

I have a chemist who can evaluate the report when the contractor delivers it. 

Please set up $5,000 for Org code

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 1:44 PM
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
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required under Section 401 of the Clean Water Act.  Furthermore, any sediment placed within State and Federal
waters must be in compliance with applicable Toxic Effluent Standards under Section 307 of the Clean Water Act. 
The sediment testing to be completed under this task order will conduct rigorous chemical analyses to test for the
presence various contaminants to show that the material dredged from these projects are in compliance with the laws
cited above and is consistent with the intent of the contract to provide environmental support to military, civil, and
Federal Agencies.

_____________________________________

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2017 10:33 AM
To:

Cc:
Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

and are the PMs on this action.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 10:31 AM
To:

Cc:
Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

16-D-0058 is Pool B, I don't think it fits there.

I also think we should be using CW AE contracts for this, more appropriate vehicle.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 10:27 AM
To:

Cc:
Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

I don't have a problem with the Scope.  The REAT Pool A contract vehicle does support this type of work.
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My concern is why we aren't using the CW AE contracts to do this.

-----Original Message-----
From: 
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 9:09 AM
To: 

Subject: FW: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

This is the one for Mobile/Pascagoula Harbor.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 9:08 AM
To:
Subject: FW: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

This is the one for Mobile/Pascagoula Harbor.

-----Original Message-----
From: 
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 8:37 AM
To: 
Subject: FW: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

For your review and signature.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 8:17 AM
To: 
Subject: RE: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

Good Morning ,

        Appendix A attached.  Let me know if you need anything else on this.

Thanks!

_____________________________________
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-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Monday, December 4, 2017 6:14 PM
To:
Subject: Re: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

The contracting officer requires the appendix “A” with this form .  Please send and I will process.

________________________________

From:
Date: December 4, 2017 at 3:03:11 PM CST
To:

Cc:

Subject: Small Business Coordination Record DD FORM 2579

Good Afternoon ,

        I am preparing a Task Order submittal package to conduct sediment testing work for the Mobile Harbor GRR
study and for Mobile and Pascagoula Harbors.  It is proposed that EA Engineering, Science, and Technology, Inc.,
PBC conduct the work under contract number W91278-16-D-0058 - Cardno-EA Joint Venture.  Attached is the
required DD FORM 2579 for you approval and signature.  Once signed, would you please forward on to the next
approving official.    Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information on this.

Thanks!

_____________________________________
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SUBJECT:  W91278-16-R-0032, Indefinite Delivery Contract (IDC) for Single Award Task 
Order Contracts (SATOCs) for Architect and Engineering (A-E) Services TO Support the 
Planning and Design for the Civil Works Program, Mobile District, U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers 
 
UNRESTRICTED: 
 
1)   Amec Foster Wheeler HDR Civil Works Joint Venture 

 Amec Foster Wheeler 
 HDR 
 Singhofen & Associates  
 Olsen Associates, Inc.  
 SEARCH  
 Pickett & Associates  
 STOA Architects  
 Quest Ecology  
 Independent Drilling  
 KMEA, Inc.  

 
2)  Anchor QEA-MWH Mobile Joint Venture 

 MWH Americas, Inc. 
 Anchor QEA LLC 
 Quality Engineering Services 
 IEA, Inc. 
 Brockington and Associates, Inc. 
 Center of Planning Excellence 
 DIMCO 
 Gaea Consultants, LLC 
 MOCA Systems, Inc. 
 JAYMAC Consultants 
 Rowe Surveying and Engineering Co, Inc. 
 Southeastern Archeological Research, Inc. 

 
3)  Arcadis U.S., Inc. 

 Gulf South Research Corporation 
 Barry A. Vittor & Associates, Inc. 
 Panamerican Consultants, Inc. 
 Civil Design and Construction, Inc. 
 DR Reed & Associates, Inc. 
 Integrated Logistical Support, Inc. 
 TRAC Laboratories, Inc. 
 TestAmerican Laboratories, Inc. 

 
4)  CH2M HILL, Inc. 

 Barry Vittor and Associates 
 Brockington and Associates 
 David Miller and Associates 
 Dewberry Consultants 
 Royal Engineers & Consultants 



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
 

 Royal HaskoningDHV 
 Stichting Deltares 

 
SMALL BUSINESS: 
 
1) Applied Coastal Research and Engineering, Inc. 

 Barry A. Vittor & Associates, Inc. 
 Gahagan & Bryant Associates, Inc. 
 CDM SMITH 
 Southeastern Archaeological Research, Inc. (SEARCH) 
 Coastal Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
 John C. Martin Associates, LLC dba Martin Associates 

2) ECS-GEC JV 
 Engineering Consulting Services, Inc. (ECS) 
 G.E.C., Inc. 
 Panamerican Consultants, Inc. 
 Ramboll Environ US Corporation 
 Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
 W. F. Baird & Associates Ltd. 
 S&ME, Inc. 

 
WOMAN OWNED SMALL BUSINESS: 
 
1) Gaea Consultants, LLC 

 MWH Global 
 Moffatt & Nichol 
 Freese & Nichols, Inc 
 Cypress Environmental 
 Science & Engineering 
 ANAMAR 
 Environmental Consulting, Inc. 
 Earth Search, Inc. 



From:
To:

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR - Concurrence on widener and passing rules
Date: Wednesday, December 13, 2017 2:39:00 PM

Thanks !

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2017 2:03 PM
To: 

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR - Concurrence on widener and passing rules

Sorry one more suggestion..... I would
suggest

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2017 1:37 PM
To:

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR - Concurrence on widener and passing rules

See attached suggestion/comments on the write up.    I also have a few suggested slight revisions to the email to be
clearer what we are wanting concurrence on and why.     Apply how the team feels fit.

Please let us know if you have any questions."

Sincerely,

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(5)

(b)5)

(b)(5)



-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2017 10:23 AM
To: 

Subject: Mobile Harbor GRR - Concurrence on widener and passing rules

Please let me know what you guys think asked that we cc him and let him have initial discussion with
Pilots.

Please let us know if you have any questions.
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From:
To:
Cc:

Subject: RE: Construction Duration - Mobile Harbor GRR
Date: Thursday, December 14, 2017 4:47:00 PM

: I'm working on a response to Casi Callaway's question about construction duration for Mobile Harbor from
yesterday's focus group meeting. I know that we previously stated it would be 6 years, but, I wanted to make sure
that we provide a fully vetted response from Engineering, Operations, and Programs. I know that there are
limitations on how long the equipment can stay in Mobile, impacts to construction costs, potential environmental
impacts, and both federal and sponsor funding limitations.

stated 2-3 years in the meeting. From your perspective what is the fastest construction duration that you guys
could do from the operations perspective? I'll then confirm if that works with and then

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Wednesday, November 22, 2017 7:29 AM
To:
Cc:

Subject: RE: Construction Duration - Mobile Harbor GRR

I'm assuming this would be phased over 6 years. ...

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2017 10:20 AM
To:
Cc:

Subject: RE: Construction Duration - Mobile Harbor GRR

Assume a 50 foot deepening with a 5 mile, 100 foot widener along with bend easing and turning basin.
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-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2017 10:18 AM
To:
Cc:

Subject: RE: Construction Duration - Mobile Harbor GRR

For each plan or a particular plan?

-----Original Message-----
From: 
Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2017 8:02 AM
To:
Cc:

Subject: Construction Duration - Mobile Harbor GRR

What is the construction duration that we are using in our estimate for the Mobile Harbor GRR?
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From:
To:
Subject: FW: Mobile Harbor GRR Eastern Shore Seafood Focus Group 08 Dec 017 - final minutes
Date: Tuesday, December 19, 2017 11:32:00 AM

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2017 12:44 PM
To:

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Eastern Shore Seafood Focus Group 08 Dec 017 - final minutes

Before you adjust the notes, let weigh in on this point.  She may recall who raised it in the meeting or
if it were something she got offline.  

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2017 12:42 PM
To: 

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Eastern Shore Seafood Focus Group 08 Dec 017 - final minutes

Hey 
Outside of the question in regards to whether they even shrimp the shell mined area, the only statement was that the
dredging does not impact the shrimpers.  I did not hear any specific concerns in regards to gill netting being
impacted by the channel. Good comment...We'll include these notes in our record.
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-----Original Message-----
From
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2017 12:09 PM
To: ;

,

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Eastern Shore Seafood Focus Group 08 Dec 017 - final minutes

Hi.  I understood weather impacted attendance, but those who were there plan to take the info back to their
stakeholders.  One thing I got feedback on was net fishermen interest.  I did not see them referenced in the notes
other than the sheepshead comment.  Can you confirm if the net fishing interest expressed concern about placement
of project related material, and if so, how did the team respond to that?  Or is that covered by #2 below?  Judy

-----Original Message-----
From: 
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2017 9:45 AM
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
Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Environmental Focus Group Meeting Minutes
Date: Tuesday, December 19, 2017 3:02:00 PM

Maybe, but, I really don't think we can post everything. I have a huge stack of letters with questions and comments
and I'm sure has another stack. They will be included in the SEIS.

As far as the open house. This decision is being made above our pay grade. I hear from and that
and the Colonel have weighed in that we will have town hall...let's see what happens.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 19, 2017 2:46 PM
To: 

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Environmental Focus Group Meeting Minutes

and others in the past have brought up the point that they want everyone else to hear the questions
they're asking and the answers. Do we post ALL the questions and comments that we get? That's one of the main
reasons they want the open house style meeting. If we just post them all, maybe we can avoid the open house and
still give them what they want.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 19, 2017 2:06 PM
To: 

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Environmental Focus Group Meeting Minutes

The attached Environmental Focus Group Meeting minutes incorporate everyone's comments. Please make
one final check and distribute to the NGOs as a DRAFT requesting their input.
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-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Friday, December 15, 2017 2:09 PM
To:

Subject: Mobile Harbor GRR Environmental Focus Group Meeting Minutes

All,
Please review the attached draft minutes from the Wednesday Environmental Focus Group Meeting and let me
know if you have comments or additions.

Once I receive your inputs, I will forward to the full attendee list.
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From:
To:

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Environmental Focus Group Meeting Minutes
Date: Tuesday, December 19, 2017 2:02:00 PM
Attachments: Draft_Minutes-Mobile_Harbor_GRR_Focus Group_13_December.docx

Environmental Focus Group Attendees List 13 Dec 2017.pdf
Environmental Focus Group Slides 12-13-17.pdf

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
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Attachment 1:  Attendance Roster  
*attended meeting via conference call 

Name Organization Email Address 

Dayne Cutrell* SEN Shelby Staff - 
Legislative Dir. 

Morgan Carter* SEN Shelby Staff 
– Legislative Ass. 

Jenn Armstrong* Senate 
Appropriations 

Bob Harris ASPA 

Judy Adams ASPA 

CEPOH Climate 
Change 
CECW-PC 

CESWD-RBT 

OWPR (CECW-PC) 

OWPR (CECW-
PC/LRD) 
SAD RIT 

CESAD-PD, 
Director of 
Programs 
CESAD-PDP 

CECC-SAD 

CESAD-PDP 

CESAD-PDR 

CESAD-PDP 

CESAD-RBT 

CESAD-RBT 

CESAD-PDC 
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CEERD-EEW 

CESAM-DS 

CESAM-PD 

CESAM-OC 

CESAM-PD-F 

CESAM-PM-C 

CESAM-PD-EC 

CESAM-PM-CM 

CESAM-PD-FP 

CESAM-EN-H 

CESAM-EN-HH 

CESAM-PD-FE 

CESAM-PD-EC 

CESAM-PD-EC 

CESAM-EN-TS 

CESAM-PD-EC 

CESAM-PM-CP 

CESAM-OP-TN 

CESAM-DX 

CESAM-PD-EI 
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

EECONOMIC CONSIDERATIONS



Hydrodynamic Modeling
Simulates offshore conditions for the nearshore hydrodynamic 
and sediment transport modules
Provides wave fields to the nearshore hydrodynamic and 
sediment transport modules
Provide water levels and current velocities to the water quality, 
estuarine sediment transport and habitat assessment modules

Water Quality Modeling 
Assess potential changes in water quality including flushing, salinity, 
dissolved oxygen, temperature, total suspended solids, nutrients and 
chlorophyll as a result of channel modifications. 
Provide water quality constituents (i.e salinity, temperature, dissolved 
oxygen, total suspended solids, etc.) for habitat assessments.

Sediment Transport Modeling
Estuarine sediment transport to assess relative changes in sedimentation 
rates as a result of channel improvements
Coastal nearshore sediment transport to quantify changes in sediment 
pathways and morphological response of the adjacent nearshore 
environment.

Ship Wake Modeling
Quantify relative changes in ship wake energy from proposed channel 
modifications.
Simulated for a select number of representative vessels and speeds.

NUMERICAL MODELING - ERDC



Wetlands
Field verification of existing data
Mapping for vegetation distributions
Salinity tolerances for observed species established
Comparing tolerances with WQ model outputs

Submerged Aquatic Vegetation (SAV)
Field verifications of existing data sets
Mapping of species distributions
Salinity tolerances established for observed species
Comparing tolerances with WQ model outputs

Oysters
Oyster reef distributions information from MRD
Numerical modeling to determine oyster larvae distribution
mortality, and flushing
WQ model to determine potential impacts to larvae and 
existing reefs

Benthic Communities
Spring & summer sampling of bay, transitional, & riverine 
Sediment grain size and TOC
Statistical analysis and interpretation in progress
WQ model to determine effects on benthic communities

Fish
Spring & summer field sampling
MRD coordination on approach for data collection and analysis
Determining relationships between salinity and fish populations
WQ model to determine effects to fish populations and 
correlation with benthics

AQUATIC RESOURCES ASSESSMENTS
ERDC



Threatened and
Endangered Species
Critical Habitats
Essential Fish Habitat
Cultural Resources
Air Emissions
Noise Pollution
Environmental Justice
Cumulative Impacts

OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS
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NNamamee

Supporting Data Collection Efforts
Acoustic Doppler Current Profile (ADCP) measurements 
and depth measurements at discrete locations along the rivers

Vertical profiles of temperature, turbidity, & conductivity at 
discrete locations

Suspended Sediment Samples at discrete locations

Model verification



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
ns/Program--and--Project-Manage
ment/Civil-Projects/Mobile-Harbo
r-GRR/

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
Subject: FW: Recent USGS Publication on Seafloor Change around Dauphin Island from 1987 - 2015
Date: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 12:44:00 PM
Attachments: ofr20171112.pdf

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Friday, December 15, 2017 11:15 AM
To:

Subject: Recent USGS Publication on Seafloor Change around Dauphin Island from 1987 - 2015

Folks,

I just wanted to pass along a recent Open File Report published by the USGS on the subject topic. The 2015 data
used in the analysis was the data collected as part of the ongoing NFWF Dauphin Island study.

It's a fairly quick read and you may find it interesting. It draws similar conclusions as Byrnes regarding effects to DI
from our dredging/disposal.
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By James G. Flocks, Nancy T. DeWitt, and Chelsea A. Stalk

Open-File Report 2017–1112



RYAN ZINKE, Secretary

William H. Werkheiser, Acting Director

U.S. Geological Survey, Reston, Virginia: 2017 

For more information on the USGS—the Federal source for science about the Earth, 
its natural and living resources, natural hazards, and the environment—visit 
https://www.usgs.gov/ or call 1–888–ASK–USGS (1–888–275–8747).

For an overview of USGS information products, including maps, imagery, and publications, 
visit https://store.usgs.gov/.

 
endorsement by the U.S. Government.

Although this information product, for the most part, is in the public domain, it also may 
contain copyrighted materials as noted in the text. Permission to reproduce copyrighted items 
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This project is part of a collaborative effort between the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE), and the State of Alabama, funded by the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) to 
investigate viable, sustainable restoration options that protect and restore the natural resources of Dauphin Island, 
Alabama. The authors would like to thank their collaborators at USACE-Mobile District, NFWF, State of Alabama, 
USGS Wetland and Aquatic Research Center, and the crew of the USACE S/V Irvington. We thank William 
Butler and the USACE Engineer Research and Development Center team that collected and processed the 2015 

Mapping Group (Julie Bernier, Kyle Kelso, Jake Fredericks, and Max Tuten), and Jeff Collier, Mayor of the town of 
Dauphin Island for their assistance. Reviews by USGS scientists Soupy Dalyander and Kathryn Smith and edits by 
Betsy Boynton and Marilyn Billone greatly improved this report.



iv

Acknowledgments ...................................................................................................................................................... iii
Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................1
Description of Study Area ............................................................................................................................................3
Results and Discussion .............................................................................................................................................10

Long-Term Change (1987–2015) ...........................................................................................................................10
Stormy Period Change (1987–2006) .....................................................................................................................12
Non-stormy Period Change (2006–2015) ..............................................................................................................12

 ...................................................................................................................................................13
Temporal and Spatial Sediment Flux .....................................................................................................................17

Conclusion .................................................................................................................................................................18
References Cited .......................................................................................................................................................19

1. Maps showing the regional location of Dauphin Island, and key features discussed in this study ................1
2. Extensive shoreline erosion, overwash, breaching, and damage to the infrastructure at Dauphin Island

during Hurricane Katrina in 2005 ...................................................................................................................2
3. Digital elevation model generated from 2015 bathymetric data ....................................................................3
4. Trackline map showing survey extent and coverage of single beam and multibeam systems collected in

July and September, 2015. ............................................................................................................................6
 .......................6

 .................................7

bathymetric data ............................................................................................................................................7
8. Digital elevation model generated from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 2006

bathymetric data ............................................................................................................................................8
9. Map showing multidecadal elevation change determined by calculating the difference in digital elevation

models between 1987 and 2015 ...................................................................................................................8
10. Map showing 19-year elevation change determined by calculating the difference in digital elevation models

between 1987 and 2006, referred to as the stormy period ............................................................................9
11. Map showing 9-year elevation change determined by calculating the difference in digital elevation models

between 2006 and 2015, referred to as the non-stormy period ....................................................................9
 .......................................14

the three time periods ..................................................................................................................................14
 ......................................15

 ...........................................16



v

 ...................................16
 ...............................17

18. Rates of change for the two time periods and long-term for each reference subsection ............................18

Tables
1. Tropical storms passing within 185 km of Dauphin Island since 1987, with major impacts highlighted ........5
2. Accretion and erosion volumes, net change, and rates of change for reference subsections of

morphological features/areas of submerged areas around Dauphin Island ................................................ 11



vi

International System of Units to U.S. customary units

By
Length

micron (um) 0.001 millimeter (mm) 
centimeter (cm) 0.394 inch (in.)

meter (m) 3.281 foot (ft) 
meter (m) 1.094 yard (yd) 

kilometer (km) 0.621 mile (mi)
kilometer (km) 0.540 mile, nautical (nmi) 

Area
square kilometer (km2) 247.1 acre
square kilometer (km2) 0.386 square mile (mi2)

Volume
cubic meter (m3) 1.31 cubic yard (yd3)
cubic meter (m3) 35.31  cubic foot (ft3)

Flow rate
cubic meter per year (m3/yr) 0.000811

Vertical coordinate information is referenced to the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88, GEOID12A), and converted to 
MLLW for analysis purposes.  Units of all vertical measurements are in meters.
Horizontal coordinate information is referenced in the geographic coordinates World Geodetic System of 1984 (WGS 84); however, data 
were projected into Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) coordinate system for analysis purposes.

DEM digital elevation model
DGPS Differential Global Positioning System
GMT Generic Mapping Tools
GPS Global Positioning System
Lidar light and detection and ranging
MLLW mean lower low water
NAVD North American Vertical Datum
USGS U.S. Geological Survey
UTM Universal Transverse Mercator
WGS World Geodetic System



By James G. Flocks, Nancy T. DeWitt, and Chelsea A. Stalk

Dauphin Island is a 26 km-long barrier island located southwest of Mobile Bay, Alabama, in 

freshwater ponds and intertidal wetlands, providing habitat for many endangered and threatened spe-
cies. Dauphin Island also provides protection for and maintains estuarine conditions within Mississippi 
Sound, supporting oyster habitat and seagrasses. Wetland marshes along the Alabama mainland are 
protected by the island from wave-induced erosion during storms approaching from the Gulf of Mexico. 
Over the years, the island has been eroded by storms, most recently by Hurricane Ivan (2004) and Hur-
ricane Katrina (2005) (Ivan/Katrina), which breached the island along its narrowest extent and caused 

 Maps showing the regional location of Dauphin Island (inset), and key features discussed in this study. The poly-
gon (outlined in purple) represents the extent of the 2015 bathymetric survey. The background satellite image is from the 2014 
U.S. Geological Survey Landsat 8.
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Island change has prompted the State of Alabama to evaluate restoration alternatives to increase 
island resilience and sustainability by protecting and preserving the natural habitat, and by understand-

-
comes and tradeoffs between impacts to stakeholder interests. Science-based assessment of the coastal 
zone requires accurate and up-to-date baseline data to provide a valid image of present conditions and to 
support modeling of coastal processes. Bathymetric elevation measurements are essential to this require-
ment. In August 2015, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and the U.S. Geological Survey 
(USGS) conducted single beam and multibeam bathymetric surveys around Dauphin Island using a 
variety of shallow draft vessels and equipment. More than 95 square kilometers (km2

end and approximately 2 km along the rest of the island on the gulf and sound sides. Water depths range 
from 0.3–15.0 meters (m), with depths greater than 10.0 m constrained to the Mobile ship channel on 

-

 Extensive shoreline erosion, overwash, breaching, and damage to the infrastructure at Dauphin Island during 
Hurricane Katrina in 2005. The view is of the central portion of the island looking west. The image was taken August 31, 2005, 
U.S. Geological Survey post-storm aerial oblique photography (https://coastal.er.usgs.gov/hurricanes/katrina/post-storm-
photos/obliquephotos.html).

Overwash

Breach

Gulf of Mexico

Mississippi
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-
tion gain (sediment accretion) and elevation loss (sediment erosion) over time. Sediment dynamics is by 

-

variable enough over this time period to have an imprint.

Dauphin Island is typically characterized in east and west segments based on geomorphology 

-
ment deposition at the beginning of island evolution (Otvos and Giardino, 2004). In contrast, the west-
ern three quarters of the island is narrow (< 500 m) and consists of low-elevation (<4-m) sandy dunes 

of the eastern end of the island is the highly dynamic Mobile Bay ebb-tidal delta, which extends ap-

toward and appending to Dauphin Island over the past century. (It is presently appended to Dauphin 
-

-
phology is consistent with most of the Mississippi-Alabama inner shelf at water depths less than 20 m 
( ). 

 Digital elevation model (DEM) generated from 2015 bathymetric data. Overlain on the DEM are transect locations 
(T1–T6) used to represent vertical change over time.
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Bois Island has been migrating westward, widening the pass and expanding the ebb-tidal delta deposits 

-

-

transport has begun to build out a beach in front of the structure.
Historical wave climate measured from a buoy approximately 54 km southeast of Dauphin Island 

the past half century, Byrnes and others (2008) estimated that approximately 4.6x104 cubic meters per 
year (m3/yr) of sediment was transported from the Mobile ebb-tidal delta west to Dauphin Island. Over the 
same time period, 2.4x105 m3/yr of sediment was eroded from the middle and western portion of the island 

shoreface than is delivered each year. Steady longshore sediment-transport rates and volumes are punc-
tuated by storm impacts which rapidly erode sand from the beach and shoreface. Since 1987, 14 named 
storms with tropical storm strength or greater passed within 185 km (100 nautical miles) of Dauphin 
Island (table 1). Storm surges up to 3 m (Hurricane Ivan) caused shoreface erosion, island overwash, and 
breaching. Since Hurricane Katrina in 2005, only two storms have passed within 185 km of the islands 

A bathymetric survey was conducted in 2015 using a suite of acoustic systems and platforms; 

these data see DeWitt and others (2017). Shallow draft vessels, including personal watercraft equipped 

-
cated on the island. Variable sound velocity within the water column was corrected using periodic casts 

-

and a narrow (4 degree) transducer beam angle to compensate for motion.
In September 2015, the USACE Engineer Research and Development Center completed multi-

island using a similar methodology (William Butler, oral comm.), while a joint USACE/USGS survey 
occupied the deeper waters on the gulf side of the island using the USACE survey vessel Irvington 

-
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All of the bathymetric data was processed in the World Geodetic System (WGS84) with eleva-

-
tion contour extracted from a 2015 USGS topographic-lidar survey of Dauphin Island. Once the various 
datasets were merged, a 5-m running mean was applied across the data to avoid aliasing short wave-

-

suppress spurious oscillations. A grid mask generated from a polygon digitized around the survey area 
-

across acquisition platforms averaged 0.022 m. 

-
site (https://maps.ngdc.noaa.gov/viewers/bathymetry/). 

zone 16 (meters) for volume estimations. Dauphin Island shorelines for 1987 and 2006 were digitized 
-

ric data. As with the recent dataset, a 5-m running mean was applied to each data merge, which were 

 Tropical storms passing within 185 km (100 nm) of Dauphin Island since 1987, with major impacts highlighted. 
Dashed line separates the 1987–2006 and 2006–2015 time periods. Storm data extracted from the National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration Historical Hurricane Track Tools v. 4.0 (https://coast.noaa.gov/hurricanes/).

Name
KM MB KTS KTS M*

Ida 8 998 45 30 0.8
Claudette Aug 2009 166 1005 40 23 -
Katrina Aug 2005 136 H3 925 107 66 2.1
Dennis 135 H3 942 110 44 0.9
Cindy 26 995 45 44 -
Arlene 74 991 50 34 0.8
Ivan Sep 2004 34 H3 946 105 79 2.9
Hanna Sep 2002 35 1003 50 36 1.1
Georges Sep 1998 57 H2 964 90 37 1.6
Earl Sep 1998 176 H2 988 85 45 0.3
Danny 15 H1 984 70 63 1.8
Opal Oct 1995 98 H3 940 105 53 0.8
Erin Aug 1995 110 H2 973 85 36 -
Alberto 154 993 55 21 -
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is 0.098 m and 0.080 m for the 1987 and 2006 grids, respectively. Areas where bathymetric data were 

each period was determined by subtracting the older period from the more recent period using the 
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 Trackline map showing survey extent and coverage of single beam and multibeam systems collected in July and 
September, 2015.
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-

time periods (2015–1987, 2006–1987, and 2015–2006) with erosion/accretion isopach maps are shown 

across time periods and were extracted from the DEMs using the transit plug-in included with the QGIS 
GIS (ver. 2.18) software.

-
spheric Administration hydrographic survey data (https://maps.ngdc.noaa.gov/viewers/bathymetry/).

bathymetric data. Overlain on the DEM are transect locations (T1–T6) used to represent vertical change over time.
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Area and volume change between the time periods was determined using the grdvolume func-
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 Digital elevation model (DEM) generated from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 2006 
bathymetric data. Overlain on the DEM are transect locations (T1–T6) used to represent vertical change over time.

 Map showing multidecadal elevation change determined by calculating the difference in digital elevation models 
(DEMs) between 1987 and 2015. The change is considered to represent accretion (positive change) and erosion (negative 
change) over the time period. Elevation differences within ±0.25 meter (m) are considered no change. Overlain onto the DEM 
are polygons (labeled A–E) that represent morphological cells from which volume change statistics are calculated (table 2).
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-
ence subsections of their respective feature.

 Map showing 9-year elevation change determined by calculating the difference in digital elevation models 
(DEMs) between 2006 and 2015, referred to as the non-stormy period. The change is considered to represent accretion (posi-
tive change) and erosion (negative change) over the time period. Elevation differences within ±0.25 meter (m) are considered 
no change. Overlain onto the DEM are polygons (labeled A–E) that represent morphological cells from which volume change 
statistics are calculated (table 2).

 Map showing 19-year elevation change determined by calculating the difference in digital elevation models 
(DEMs) between 1987 and 2006, referred to as the stormy period. The change is considered to represent accretion (positive 
change) and erosion (negative change) over the time period. Elevation differences within ±0.25 meter (m) are considered no 
change. Overlain onto the DEM are polygons (labeled A–E) that represent morphological cells from which volume change 
statistics are calculated (table 2).
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Morphologic features seen in the three time periods and referenced in this study include the 

Mexico and Mississippi Sound sides of Dauphin Island contain few morphologic features, with the gulf 

vulnerability of narrow island width and low elevations to storm inundation.

change, impact of Hurricanes Ivan/Katrina, and recovery following Hurricanes Ivan/Katrina, respec-
tively, and will be discussed in the context of these periods and events. It should be noted that other sig-

be considered “stormy” and “non-stormy”, respectively. In the 20 years before 1987, only four tropical 

directly over the island as a category 4 storm). Relative to this prior two-decade period of 4 storms, the 
1987–2006 timeframe (12 storms in two decades) can be considered exceptionally stormy.

-
tions sediment volumes were calculated and compared to assess volumetric change over time (table 2). 

discussed following the results of the volumetric change assessment.

Over the three decades from 1987 to the present, barrier island retreat and breaching is evident in 
the long-term (1987–2015) comparison, as well as the occurrence of the breach in the middle of the is-

ebb-tidal delta experienced only a slight net accretion. Sediment volumes increased 2 percent within 
the reference subsection (A) at a rate of 3.7x103 m3

to change rates in other areas, suggesting the Mobile ebb-tidal delta cell is in equilibrium. Sediment 

lobe of the Mobile ebb-tidal delta, which is separated from the western lobe by the Mobile Outer Bar 

from the ship channel and removed offshore. Byrnes and others (2008) estimate that between 1990 and 
2006, 10.8x106 m3 of sediment had been removed from the ship channel. Some of the historical offshore 
disposal areas are immediately offshore of the ebb-tidal delta and appear to be supplying sediment back 
to the western side of the Mobile ebb-tidal delta system (Byrnes and others, 2008).

the zone through shoreface erosion and sediment transport, both along the shoreline of Dauphin Island 
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and rollover into the Mobile ebb-tidal delta. As a result, it has experienced the largest loss in volume per 

positive budget is offset by shoreface erosion that increases westward as the long, narrow portion of the 
island migrated landward from 77 m on the east end to 164 m on the west end between 1987 and 2015. 

reference subsection (C) lost about 530x103 m3/yr (table 2), the highest rate of any cell. Most of this loss 
occurred along the immediate shoreline, but erosion also occurred offshore across the western half of the 

-
3 m3/yr, building 

In Mississippi Sound, the only appreciable gain of sediment in the reference subsection (E) oc-
-

elevation at a rate of –394x103 m3 -

discussion.

 Accretion and erosion volumes, net change, and rates of change for reference subsections of morphological 
features/areas of submerged areas around Dauphin Island. (Areas are shown for each time period as lettered polygons in 

[m3 cubic meter; m3/yr, cubic meter per year; GOM, Gulf of Mexico; MS, Mississippi Sound; 

5 m3 5 m3 3 m3 3 m3

1987–2015 28 50.10 103 3.69

21.53

Dauphin GOM (C) 2.06

18.08 791 28.26

Dauphin MS (E) 5.32

1987–2006 19 20.05

14.00

Dauphin GOM (C) 0.77

18.40 1,162 61.15

Dauphin MS (E) 4.92

2006–2015 9 37.20 851 94.56

14.41 315 35.05

Dauphin GOM (C) 3.92

4.53

Dauphin MS (E) 8.15
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During the 19-year time period ending in 2006, Dauphin Island was impacted by 12 storms, 4 of 

tidal delta experienced net accretion over the long term, during this time period a net loss of sediment 
occurred. Over twice as much sediment was removed from the reference subsection (A) during this time 

3 m3/yr) when compared 
to other areas around the island. Although removal of sediment from the system during storm impact 
is a large driver of the loss, approximately 7.0x105 m3/yr of sediment was dredged from the Mobile 
ship channel during this time period and placed in offshore sites (USACE, 2016), likely reducing the 
net sediment available to migrate westward into the study area. Accretion of sediment on the western 

change is likely incomplete given that some of this area was not captured during the 2006 survey.

6 m3, or 
3 m3/yr (table 2), as sediment has been removed from the system both through littoral transport 

and storm impact. Westward, along Dauphin Island, the most dramatic change was the formation of the 
breach, while the rest of the island experienced 1–3.25-m elevation loss at the shoreface through ero-

5 m3/yr) within 
the reference subsection (C) over this time period is the highest of any time period in any subsection, 

4 m3/yr over this time 

period (table 2), is only 12 percent of the rate of loss along the adjacent gulf-facing Dauphin shoreline, 
suggesting episodic storm processes dominated nonstorm littoral transport along the island shoreface.

consistent with the long-term loss rate (table 2). Vertical erosion is fairly uniform throughout the subsec-

dataset does not capture the shoreface on the sound side, the elevation gain of only a portion of overwash 
deposit at the breach can be measured and ranges from +0.3 to +1.0 in elevation between 1987 and 2006.

Since 2006, only two tropical storms passed within 184 km of Dauphin Island (table 1), thus 
normal (for example, non-storm) littoral processes are expected to be the dominant mode of sediment 

amount of accretion during this period and the highest rate of gain of any subsection over any time 
period. Deposition more than doubled what had been lost over the previous period (table 2). Most of 
the elevation gain occurred within the northwest part of the subsection and is likely a result of littoral 

contribute to the sediment surplus.
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period, reversed loss and experienced almost an equal amount of accretion at a rate of  
+35.1x103 m3

contributed to sediment deposition within the reference subsection, and storm-induced rollover into the 

remainder of Dauphin Island continued to thin through shoreface erosion, up to 100 m on the western 

breach at the center of the island was closed by rock during this time period (2011), and there is ap-
proximately 2 m of accretion seaward of the structure. As throughout all time periods, the gulf side of 
Dauphin Island continued to lose sediment, although at almost half the rate of the previous time period 

-
minal spit has accreted 680 m westward from its 2006 position and littoral transport has contributed up 

subsection (D) had accreted substantially in the previous time period, during this period the net change 

conditions is substantially less than what is liberated and transported during stormy conditions, and not 
enough to maintain equilibrium at this location without episodic deposition.

-

Rate of erosion in the reference subsection (E), although negative, decreased 65 percent from the stormy 

2006, but elevation change analysis from an area at the western tip of the island that was covered sug-
gests erosion occurred all the way to the shoreline.

-

-

-
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and 8 for locations). A, B, and C refer to locations discussed in the text. The vertical exaggeration is 250x.
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-

the seaward extent of the transect, along the edge of the ebb-tidal delta, landward shoal migration oc-

earlier datasets at the western end of Dauphin Island.

and 8 for locations). A refers to a location discussed in the text. The vertical exaggeration is 240x.
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and 8 for locations). Position of a crossing transect (T2) is shown. A and B refer to locations discussed in the text. The vertical 
exaggeration is 1980x.
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tidal deltas were the only features to either remain in equilibrium (Mobile ebb-tidal delta, A) or accrete 
-

been migrating landward and rolling over through overwash into the Mobile ebb-tidal delta, producing 
net loss within the reference subsection (B).

-

ebb-tidal delta (A) was relatively small and could be in part due to dredging of the Mobile Outer Bar 
ship channel and removal of sediment offshore. During the non-stormy period (2006–2015), the gulf (C) 
and sound (E) sides of Dauphin Island continued to experience overall erosion of the shoreface, at rates 

trapped sediment within the Mobile ebb-tidal delta cell, resulting in accretion in the western part of the 

and 8 for locations). The vertical exaggeration is 1830x.
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changing elevation at different rates in response to morphology and oceanographic conditions. In gen-

the Gulf of Mexico, and the shoreface of Dauphin Island facing Mississippi Sound. Bathymetric change 
within these areas was analyzed over two time periods (1987–2006 and 2006–2015) and compared to 

intense storm impacts with 12 tropical storms passing near the island, 4 of them severe (table 1). During 

process affecting elevation. In contrast, only two tropical storms passed by Dauphin Island during the 
second time interval (2006–2015). During this period, normal east-to-west littoral sediment transport, 

-
ern shoreface of Dauphin Island, both on the gulf and sound sides, with reduced net erosion occurring 

Katrina through a net accumulation of sediment since 2006. Some of this accretion can be attributed to 

would otherwise migrate along the shoreface of Dauphin Island though a prevailing westward sediment 

Dauphin Island shoreface. Based on rates and volumes of erosion and accretion at the island shoreface 

 Rates of change (erosion/accretion over time) for the two time periods and long-term (1987–2015) for each refer-
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and net erosion during the non-stormy period, correlating with higher erosion rates at the Dauphin Island 

during normal littoral transport, while occurring, does not maintain (or barely maintains) equilibrium at 

District, 199 p., accessed March 17, 2017, at 
environmental/acf/docs/072108-A-AQ963-014.pdf.

-

Single-beam bathymetry data collected in 2015 nearshore Dauphin Island, Alabama: U.S. Geological 
Survey data release, accessed May 30, 2017, at .

Mississippi-Alabama shelf, northern Gulf of Mexico, in

morphology offshore of the Mississippi barrier islands, northern Gulf of Mexico, USA: Continental 
Shelf Research, v. 101, p. 59–70.

https://doi.org/10.3133/ofr20151179.

of Mexico: Sedimentary Geology, v. 169, p. 47–73.
-

tion of selected near-term leasable offshore sand deposits and competing onshore sources for beach 
nourishment: Geological Survey of Alabama Circular 190, 173 p.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2016, Dauphin Island Restoration Organization Memorandum 
for Record, accessed March 17, 2017, at http://www.dauphinislandrestoration.org/gvt/corps/2016-

.
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From:
To:
Subject: RE: GRR wetlands update for 12/20 meeting
Date: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 8:25:00 AM

Thanks, . You enjoy the holidays, too!

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 19, 2017 1:37 PM
To:

Subject: GRR wetlands update for 12/20 meeting

and ,
I'll be out of the office tomorrow (I suspect many will be on leave) so here is the wetlands update.
The model files for salinity data (current condition and with-project) have been converted to shape files and
distributed to the aquatic resource teams. We now have the data separated into the appropriate depths (e.g., near
surface depths for wetlands; near bottom for benthics) and analysis is ongoing. My understanding is that the with-
sea level rise and water quality model runs are ongoing, we have not seen any of that data to date.
Thanks and enjoy the holiday.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Monday, December 18, 2017 3:33 PM
To: 

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6) (b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)



Cc: 

Subject: Mobile Harbor GRR IPR#3 - Final Meeting Minutes

All: Attached are the final minutes for the Mobile Harbor GRR IPR#3. Will coordinate with vertical team leads soon
to set the January date for review of the proposed width and length of the widener.

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Thursday, December 07, 2017 3:27 PM
To:

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)



Cc:

Subject: Mobile Harbor GRR IPR#3 - Draft Meeting Minutes

All: Attached are the DRAFT Meeting Minutes from the Mobile Harbor GRR IPR#3 held November 28. Please
provide comments back to me by COB Wednesday, December 13, 2017.

-----Original Appointment-----
From: 
Sent: Monday, October 16, 2017 1:40 PM

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)



To:

Cc: 

Subject: Mobile Harbor GRR IPR#3
When: Tuesday, November 28, 2017 1:30 PM-3:00 PM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada).
Where: Mobile District Employees, Exec Conference Room

All: Due to a schedule conflict, Mobile Harbor IPR #3 time and date have been revised to Tuesday, November 28 at
1430hrs ET (1330hrs CT).

All,
Please plan on attending an In-Progress Review Meeting for the Mobile Harbor GRR, Thursday, November 30 at
1000hrs ET (0900hrs CT). 

Webinar Information is as follows:
Web Meeting Address: 
USA Toll-Free: 
Access Code: 
Security Code: 

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)
(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)



From:
To:
Subject: Re: Mobile Harbor GRR Bi-weekly Meeting
Date: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 12:19:41 PM

Thanks ! Merry Christmas and Happy new year! I will miss our coffee breaks.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone.
  Original Message
From: 
Sent: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 12:06 PM
To:

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Bi-weekly Meeting

I will be unable to attend the meeting this afternoon and wanted to provide an update for economics.  The economic
vertical team had an IPR 8 December.  The vertical team

The forecasted tonnage and TEUs have been updated for the analysis and the updated container call list
and HarborSym modeling efforts are in progress.

-----Original Message-----
From: 
Sent: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 11:24 AM
To:

Cc: 

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)
(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(5)

(b)(5)

(b)(5)



Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Bi-weekly Meeting

All: We will have the Mobile Harbor Meeting this afternoon. Please attend if you are able.

-----Original Appointment-----
From:
Sent: Wednesday, February 01, 2017 12:39 PM
To:

Cc:

Subject: Mobile Harbor GRR Bi-weekly Meeting
When: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 2:00 PM-3:00 PM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada).
Where: MsCIP Conference Room

For those not in the district office, call-in Information is as follows:

USA Toll-Free:
Access Code:
Security Code: 

All: The Mobile Harbor GRR bi-weekly meeting has been moved to Wednesdays at 2pm, beginning February 01,
2017.  Please update your calendar accordingly. The purpose of the meeting remains to provide a brief update on the
project, ensure all work is being performed, and ensure that the schedule is met.

Thanks,

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)

(b)(6)



(b)(6)



From:
To:

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Environmental Focus Group Meeting Minutes
Date: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 8:39:00 AM

Good comments, . I'm glad you and both caught that I included attendees. That could have been a
disaster. 

On comment 4, I believe

-----Original Message-----
From:
Sent: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 8:30 AM
To:

Subject: RE: Mobile Harbor GRR Environmental Focus Group Meeting Minutes

Sorry my late response.... I attached tracked changes with my comments.  Also note that the attendance
attachment is from the and not the focus group meeting. 

I added a comment from you that I noted in the meeting. Please make sure it's correctly stated. 

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




